# Advisory guidelines for the environmental impact statement on a 600 MWe coal-fired power station in Amsterdam

21 August 1987

# CIP-DATA KONINKLIJKE BIBLIOTHEEK, DEN HAAG

# Advisory

Advisory guidelines for the environmental impact statement on a 600 MWe coal-fired power station in Amsterdam / [Commission for Environmental Impact Assessment; adapt. by S.A.A. Morel; transl. from the Dutch]. - Utrecht: Commission for Environmental Impact Assessment

Transl. of: Advies voor richtlijnen milieu-effectrapport Hemweg-8 kolencentrale te Amsterdam. - Utrecht : Commissie voor de Milieu-Effectrapportage, 1987. ISBN 90-5237-765-0

Subject headings: environmental impact statement ; Amsterdam / coal-fired power stations ; Amsterdam.

# CONTENTS

		Page
Sun	mmary of the advice	1
4.	Introduction	3
2.	Definition of the problems and objectives	3
3.	Decision-making process	3
4.	Proposed activity and alternatives	4
	4.1 Proposed activity 4.2 Alternatives	5
	4.2 Alternatives 4.2.1 Zero alternative	7 8
	4.2.2 Implementation alternatives and mitigating mea	
	4.2.3 The alternative most favourable to the environn	
5.	Current state of the environment and autonomous development	10
6.	Environmental Impacts	11
	6.1 General	11
	6.2 Air	12
	6.3 Soil and water	12
	6.4 Noise	13
	6.5 Vegetation and fauna	13
	6.6 Landscape 6.7 Safety	13 14
7.	Comparison of the alternatives	14
8.	Gaps in information	14
9.	Post project analysis	15
10.	EIS style and presentation	15

ANNEX: Outline of the EIA procedure on a 600 MWe coal-fired power station in Amsterdam

#### SUMMARY OF THE ADVICE

This advice of the Commission for environmental impact assessment (EIA) contains recommendations for the content of the environmental impact statement (EIS) for a coal dust fired electricity power plant with a capacity of 600 MWe (net) in Amsterdam.

# Definition of the problems and objectives (chapter 2)

The EIS should answer the following questions:

- what is the contribution of the power plant to the electricity supply in the Netherlands. Argue the prognoses for the electricity demand.
- on the basis of which criteria Amsterdam is selected as suitable location for a large scale coal fired power station?

#### Decision-making process (chapter 3):

The EIS must motivate why certain alternatives have been discarded in an earlier stage.

#### Proposed activity and the alternatives (chapter 4):

The following aspects of the proposed activity must be described:

- · fuel choice and fuel composition;
- · reception, transshipment, storage and transport of coals;
- design and processing data of the power plant, insofar as relevant for the environmental impacts;
- · the flue gas desulphurization installation;
- · reduction of the NO<sub>v</sub> emission;
- · treatment of ashes and slags:
- · use of seepage water;
- · waste water flows;
- · facilities to prevent calamities.

At the project level, to which this EIS is directed, the following alternatives have been formulated.

- The zero alternative assumes prolonged functioning of existing power plants in view of an eventual postponement of the decision to construct the new plant. The zero alternative is meant to be a frame of reference to review the other alternatives.
- For the alternative most favourable to the environment the following variants are required:
  - The EIS must indicate whether coal gasification is a real option.
     A description of coal gasification must be included to enable comparison with the environmental impacts of a coal dust fired power plant. The possibility of phased construction of a so called integrated KV-STEG installation (Coal gasification integrated with a steam and gas turbine) must be part of the EIS.
  - An environmentally favourable variant of a conventional coal power plant must be elaborated. The proponent must design this variant on the basis of the project-design most favourable to the environment of the various parts of the plant.

· An alternative based on the total energy principle (use of combined heat and power) must be elaborated.

# Current state of the environment and autonomous development (chapter 5):

- The current state of the environment must be described insofar as relevant for the expected environmental impacts.
- Special attention must be paid to sensitive objects, such as houses/recreation accommodations, agricultural and horticultural crops, flora/vegetation/fauna and ecotypes in nature reserves (soils with low calcium contents), cultural and historical objects, drinking water basins and dust sensitive industries.
- abiotic environmental aspects must be described: air quality, quality of surface water, background noise levels.

# Environmental impacts (chapter 6):

- Special attention is asked for the environmental living conditions of the people living in the surroundings, for soil and surface water, vegetation and crops.
- · Possible positive environmental aspects of exploitation of the new power plant should be discussed.

#### Comparison of the alternatives (chapter 7):

· How can the impacts of the various alternatives on the environment be judged and to what extent can these alternatives be appreciated in a mutual comparison per environmental aspect.

#### Gaps in information (chapter 8):

- Which gaps in knowledge and information remain?
- What is the importance of these gaps in knowledge for the decision-making process?
- · Research on the gaps in knowledge and the actually occurring environmental impacts must be included in an evaluation programme.

#### 1. Introduction

The municipality of Amsterdam proposes to establish a coal fired electricity power plant with a net capacity of 600 MWe net, with the possibility of external heat supply. The EIS obligation is coupled to the licensing procedure. The daily board of the province of North Holland and the Minister of Transport, Public Works and Water Management are the competent authorities.

While drafting their advice, the Commission took into consideration the reaction of the general public, received through the competent authority.

#### 2. DEFINITION OF THE PROBLEMS AND OBJECTIVES

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 1, sub a: An EIS shall contain at least: "a description of the purpose of the proposed activity".

The EIS must indicate the contribution of the power plant to the national electricity supply. Prognoses for the electricity demand must be discussed.

The objectives of the project must be precisely formulated in the EIS. This in order to facilitate formulation of alternative ways to realise the objectives.

It must be elucidated why the location is selected as one of the most suitable locations for large-scale coal power and to what extent this location is a suitable location from an environmental point of view. Is this location for the plant a constraint for development of the residential function of the area?

#### 3. DECISION-MAKING PROCESS

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 1, sub c:

An EIS shall contain at least: "an indication of the decisions in the preparation of which the environmental impact statement is to be drawn up, and a review of the decisions previously taken by government bodies relating to the proposed activity and the alternatives described".

Former governmental decisions and policy intentions will influence or impose restrictions on the decision for which the EIS is to be compiled. The EIS should clearly explain which restrictions and influences exist.

Review criteria for the activity and the alternatives such as environmental standards must be rendered.

The backgrounds of the decision to build the coal power plant must be clearly explained in the EIS from an environmental point of view.

The EIS must argue why certain alternatives for the construction of the dust coal fired power plant have been discarded at an earlier stage of the decision-making process, such as:

- stimulating saving on electricity use;
- · use of other fuels, such as natural gas;

- · decentral generation with for instance fluid bed combustion units:
- · KV-STEG, possibly carried out in stages;
- capacity expansion of current production units (for instance by means of pre-switched gas turbines);
- more efficient use of existing production capacity by means of storage of energy or by manipulation of the demand (by changing tariffs?);
- · increase of electricity import;
- · prolongation of the exploitation period of existing power plants;
- realization of a larger contribution of industrial and other decentral heat/power capacity.

It is meant that an historical overview is given of the decision-making process until now without rediscussing the decisions made.

In addition, it must be indicated in the EIS which decisions will still (have to) be made at a later stage in order to be able to carry out the project.

One can think of decisions with regard to transshipment of coal, processing of residues, etcetera.

#### 4. Proposed activity and alternatives

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 1, sub b:

An EIS shall contain at least: "a description of the proposed activity and the manner in which it will be carried out, and of the alternatives which should reasonably be taken into consideration".

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 3:

"The alternatives to be described in accordance with subsection one, under b, shall in any case include the alternative which makes use of the best means available for protecting the environment".

Based on a number of preconditions concerning:

- · availability, reliability and controllability;
- · cost effectiveness and efficiency:
- · safety, noise emissions and emission of toxic substances;
- re-use of residues;

the initiator intents to build a coal fired installation equipped with (electrostatic) fly ash filters, flue gas desulphurization and low  $NO_x$  burners with adapted furnace. The impacts on the environment will be reduced as much as possible and the best existing techniques will be used.

This proposed activity and the alternatives/variants which should reasonably be taken into consideration must be described and elaborated. The motivation of the choice of alternatives must be described in the EIS, as well as the selection process which has led to the choice of the preferred activity.

# 4.1 Proposed activity

In describing the proposed activity, with all its activities, a distinction must be made according to construction, exploitation and management of the power plant and the accompanying facilities such as the flue gas desulphurization, storage of the residues etc.. In particular the elements of both installation and the site possibly causing the most important environmental impact should be described in detail. In any case attention must be paid to the following points.

- The choice of fuel: how are use of coal and natural gas related? How do emissions change when input of gas is increased?
- Fuel data: which requirements the coal must meet (amongst others: moisture content, granular composition, ash content, chemical composition, such as nitrogen and sulphur content and content of heavy metals)? Which coal composition gives which average emissions?
- Supply, transshipment, storage and transport of coal:
  - · From where, how and how frequently will coal be supplied: which waterways, roads/railroads and which means of transport are used?
  - · Will the capacity of existing infrastructure be expanded in view of coal supply?
  - · Will an established transshipment company be used or will a new transshipment facility (landing stage and the like) be constructed or an existing stage be enlarged?
  - · With the help of which facilities will loading and unloading take place from the coal transport carrier?
  - · Will any noise and dust limiting measures be taken for loading and unloading?
  - · How does the coarse sieving and the deferrization take place? Where and how will these residues be stored?
  - · How does the mixing of coal types take place?
  - · How is the design of the coal bunkers (bottom and upper sealing, capacity)?
  - Which dust emission controlling facilities have been installed for storage (location in relation to the predominant wind direction, wind screens, covering; does spraying take place, are agentia added to the spraying water?
  - · How does transport take place from the coal silos? Are any dust and noise limiting measures taken?
  - · How does crushing of the coal take place? What is the granular composition of the powder coal?
  - · Will a beneficiation process be applied?
- The description of the design of the power plant must include the following subjects.
  - · Process data of the boiler installation (amongst others temperature).
  - · The air and flue gas flow.
  - The coal crushing installations (eventual noise and dust limiting facilities).
  - The burner installation. Its dimensions, temperature divisions that occur and the way temperature and oxygen concentration are tuned to each other? What is the magnitude of the emission of nitrogen oxides in

- relation to the type of burner installation to be chosen? In what manner will the design anticipate any future standards, for instance the additional placement of facilities afterwards (denitrification)?
- Dust filters. Which type of filter system will be chosen: cloth filters or electrostatic flue gas cleansing? Which reduction of emissions will be achieved? What is the final emission level of the chimney, taking into account the follow-up cleansing of the flue gases in the flue gas desulphurization installation?
- · What is the capacity of the (fly-ash filters) catchers in case of pulse pressure (soot); which incidental emissions does this boiler cleansing entail?
- · The design of the chimney(s) (height, diameter, outflow velocity).
- The flue gas desulphurization installation (FDI).
  - · According to which process does the desulphurization take place?
  - $\cdot$  Where will the FDI be placed?
  - · Which capacity will it have and which emission reductions will be obtained? What is the final emission level from the chimney?
  - · Of how many units will the installation consist?
  - · In which way can emissions be limited in case of malfunctioning?
  - · What quantity of gypsum will be produced? What is the quality of the gypsum and what are the prognoses for sale? How will the gypsum be removed? What is the storage capacity for gypsum?
  - · What is the temperature of the exhaust gases (in relation to plume rising and dew point)?
  - Does re-heating of the exhaust gases take place and if so, up to what temperature and in what manner? (Adding of untreated warm exhaust gases, heat exchangers etcetera). What are the expected developments in this field? What are the consequences of eventually not adopting this re-heating?
- In which way will the current standards for  $\mathrm{NO}_2$  emission be satisfied? In which way can sharper standards in future be met? (One can think of constructing a furnace allowing for future modifications and of reserving space for eventual denitrification.)
- Treatment of ash and slags.
  - Which quantities of ash and slags are released on the average per day and in which way and in which form (configuration) are these materials separated?
  - · What are the marketing prognoses in the long term?
  - · Which quality do the ash and the slags have? Which loss of quality (higher percentage unburned) occurs as a result of eventual adjustment of the burners to limit the nitrogen oxide emission?
  - Which storage facilities will be created for the various kinds of fly ash and slags? What is the capacity and for how long will the capacity suffice?
     Does storage take place on the site proper or (also) on other sites? In which manner are residues removed?
- Cooling water.
  - · How much cooling water is necessary and how much is available from the various sources, in particular during extremely dry summers?
  - · Has construction of a cooling tower been anticipated?
  - · Place of intake and of discharge: constructions.

- The temperature of intake water and temperature rise of discharged water. The frequency distributions of these data.
- Additives to the cooling water, such as chlorine and ferrosulphate, the frequency at which additives are applied, total quantities and maximum concentrations occurring.
- · Measures to neutralise or limit the adverse impacts of these additions.
- Waste water flows both continuous and incidental from:
  - the demineralisation installation:
  - · the condensate cleansing installation:
  - · cooling of bottom ashes;
  - · discharge installations;
  - · the flue gas desulphurization device;
  - · the feeder installation of the boiler;
  - · the boiler cleansing and maintenance activities;
  - the air pre-heaters and flue gas channels cleansing and maintenance activities:
  - · effluents emanating from the processing of slags;
  - · drainage and leakage water from the storage of coal, fly ash and other raw materials or products;
  - · domestic waste water:
  - rain water running off from installations and paved surfaces.

The statement must include: flow rates, composition, place of discharge, treatment-technical and other measures to reduce their magnitude and/or harmful effects.

- Which provisions are made for the various parts of the installation in case of normal and serious operational disturbances and in case of test-running and starting of the power plant?
- Which other installations are planned to be part of the power plant? (for instance demineralisation installation, condensate cleansing installation, waste water treatment installation, own electrical installation, compressed air facilities, auxiliary boiler, facilities for district heating).

#### 4.2 Alternatives

The alternatives must be described at an equal level of detail.

The possibility to develop alternatives is limited by former decisions. Therefore the alternatives which might be developed for the coal fired unit should be at the project level. On a project level implementation alternatives and environment-saving measures are conceivable. These will be elaborated in following sections.

#### 4.2.1 Zero alternative

The zero alternative is the alternative in which the realisation of a coal heated unit of 600 MWe would not take place, and current power plants are kept operational longer, in view of a possible postponement of the decision to build the power plant. This alternative is particularly important as a frame of reference for the other alternatives/variants. The development of the environment for the situation the activity will not be carried out (see section 5) must be described both locally and nationally.

#### 4.2.2 Implementation alternatives and mitigating measures

For a conventional power plant the implementation alternatives and mitigating measures can in particular relate to:

- the method of coal supply: means of transport (slurry transport), transshipment facilities (continuous transshipment and covered conveyor belts).
- selection of coal: in relation to nitrogen and heavy metals contents.
- the method of storage and mixing: open-air storage (location in relation to dominant wind direction, screening), covering, spraying with agentia, storage in silos.
- crushing/pulverisation: reducing particle size of powder coal with regard to the temperatures of combustion to be adopted and the related production of  $NO_{\nu}$ .
- pre-cleansing (beneficiation): the pre-cleansing of the fuel with physical (for instance magnetic removal of pyretic sulphur) and mechanical techniques.
- lay-out of the furnace, burners and power plant: in addition to the
  essentials, such as burner type, furnace design and emission reducing
  measures, some details, such as aspects of physical planning (design,
  maximum building height, height of chimney), safety aspects (valves,
  reserve provisions) and noise aspects (valves, ventilators, grinding installation) are of environmental relevance.
- pre-switching of a gas turbine to increase energy efficiency and (possibly) decrease NO<sub>x</sub> emission.
- for burner type/design of furnace and burner many combinations of alternatives are possible which result in a low NO<sub>x</sub> emission:
  - · low burner zone load;
  - · low NO<sub>x</sub> burners;
  - · flue gas recirculation;
  - · off-stoichiometry;
  - · two-step combustion;
  - · in furnace reduction of NO<sub>x</sub>.
- use of denitrification techniques: conversion of  $NO_x$  into nitrogen without catalyst (thermic denox) and with catalyst (selective catalytic reduction, SCR).
- method of desulphurization of flue gases: various techniques are possible, which can be divided into the following groups:
  - · non-regenerative (final product gypsum);
  - · idem with other final products, amongst others ammonium sulphate;
  - · regenerative wet, magnesium oxide, citrate;

- · regenerative dry, active coal;
- combined SO<sub>2</sub>/NO<sub>x</sub> removal;
- prewashing of flue gases: this results in a better quality of gypsum.
   Application of this technique could be necessary in order to actually be able to sell these products in case standards for construction materials are sharpened in future.
- means to filter fly-ashes from flue gases: the essential choice is the choice between electrostatic filters and cloth filters (the maximum efficiency of cloth filters is somewhat higher [more than 99%], in particular for the smallest, respirable particles, which contain relatively many harmful substances). The flue gas desulphurization process has its impact on further deducting of flue gases.
- effluent treatment: polluted waste water arises where precipitation or spraying water comes in contact with the coal, the slags or the flue gas. Treatment of this effluent must be done in a treatment facility. The way in which the residue of these waste water treatment facility is handled merits equal attention.
- removal of fouling: removal of organisms by means of a temperature shock instead of chemicals.
- storage of solid waste: the size of the storage on the plant site and the necessity of removal to elsewhere is related to the possibilities to process or dump the waste materials. Open or closed storage facilities; separation of types of waste according to the degree of pollution and in view of future processing. Possibilities for extraction of certain materials from the waste (for instance recovery of aluminium). Adoption of other techniques for bottom sealing of dumpsites.
- for the solid waste it will be necessary to present scenarios for the sale, processing and storage, to which also a scenario assuming a decrease in the possibilities to market gypsum, fly-ash and slags must be added; if applicable, the possibilities for sale of sulphur and sulphuric acid must also be addressed.

#### 4.2.3 The alternative most favourable to the environment

As alternatives most favourable to the environment the following two alternatives must be described in the EIS.

Departing from the accomplished choice that the power plant will use coal as fuel, the integrated use of coal gasification could be mentioned as alternative for the conventional coal power plant. This is an integration of a coal gasification with a steam and gas turbine installation, the so-called KV-STEG. From an environmental point of view KV-STEG seems to have important advantages as compared to powder coal combustion. The building of a KV-STEG plant can be carried out in stages. A STEG (steam and gas turbine) unit could be built first. As soon as the technique for coal gasification is available at this scale, a KV (coal gasification) unit can be connected. It must be indicated in the EIS whether coal gasification is a realistic option. A description of coal gasification must be included in order to enable comparison of its environmental impacts with the environmental impacts of a conventional coal fired power plant.

Attention should also be paid to an environmentally favourable variant of a conventional coal power plant. In the EIS this alternative must be composed by joining the environmentally favourable design alternatives as indicated in § 3.2.2. Possibly this could be a combination of coal delivery through a slurry pipe, storage in silos, beneficiation, in furnace reduction of  $NO_x$ , prewashing of flue gases, regenerative desulphurization, cloth filters for removal of toxic materials from the fly ash and denitrification of the flue gases.

It is recommended to investigate which possibilities exist to utilise surplus heat by distributing it for industrial and domestic purposes. This total energy alternative must be elaborated both technically and commercially. The difference in emissions to water (heat) and air must be mirrored against the gain in overall efficiency.

# 5. CURRENT STATE OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND AUTONOMOUS DEVELOPMENT

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 1, sub d:

An EIS shall contain at least: "a description of the current state of the environment in so far as the proposed activity or the described alternatives may affect it, and the expected developments in the said environment in the event that neither the said activity nor the alternatives are undertaken".

In addition to the plant site and its direct surroundings, the study area also covers the areas which can be influenced by the activity. Per environmental aspect (air, water, noise and the like) the size of the area that is influenced can differ. In the EIS the study-area must be defined per environmental aspect.

The current state of the environment must be described in the EIS insofar as it is relevant for the prediction of the environmental impacts of the proposed activity and the alternatives. The description of the current state of the environment and of the expected (autonomous) development of the environment (if the activity is not implemented) also serves as a frame of reference for the description of the environmental impacts and the comparison of the alternatives.

The description of the current situation of the environment must in particular pay attention to the following aspects:

- The EIS should give a short description of sensitive objects (sensitive to what and to what extent) in the surroundings, stating their nature, size, number, place and distance to the planned installations. The objects concerned must be indicated on a map. In relation to the existing environmental burden and its increase by industrial establishments, the following objects can be considered as sensitive:
  - · residential and recreational areas;
  - · agricultural and horticultural crops;
  - $\cdot$  flora, vegetation, fauna and ecosystems in nature conservation areas;
  - · cultural heritage, recreative objects and valuable elements in the landscape;
  - · dust sensitive industries.

- In addition, a description could be included of the existing environmental quality and the autonomous development insofar as relevant for the influences of the intended activity, such as:
  - · the air quality and the influence of existing industries;
  - · the quality of the surface water into which the waste water is discharged;
  - · the background noise levels (as influenced by day and night values).

Where relevant the development of the quality over the past few years must be described, and the influence of foreseen future developments (new sources of pollution and rehabilitation activities).

# 6. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 1, sub e:

An EIS shall contain at least: "a description of the effects which the proposed activity or the described alternatives may have on the environment, and an explanation of the manner in which the said effects have been determined and described".

A description of the environmental impacts must finally result in a mutual comparison of the various alternatives.

#### 6.1 General

In describing the impacts on the environment one must take into account that these impacts may be of a temporary or permanent nature or may even only become gradually perceivable in the long term. Distinction should be made between impacts resulting from the construction of the plant and impacts resulting from the exploitation of the plant. The environmental impacts to be expected must preferably be described in their mutual coherence and preferably in an absolute sense. This, in order to facilitate a comparison on a basis as quantitative as possible.

In the EIS the used prediction methods and models must be described, including the extent of reliability. An indication should be given of the variability in the prediction results that can be expected as a consequence of uncertainties and inaccuracies in the methods and models. In case of uncertainty about the occurrence of impacts, the worst conceivable situation must be assumed. The choice of the prediction methods must be motivated referring to recently acquired knowledge and publications.

At the description of environmental impacts emphasis must be laid on impacts that are almost or fully irreversible.

Only if important differences between the alternatives and variants are expected, the impacts must be described per alternative or variant distinguished. In case of minor differences indication of these differences will suffice.

In the following paragraphs a (non exhaustive) list is given of impacts per environmental aspect that must be addressed in the EIS.

#### 6.2 Air

The background levels and the changes resulting from the emission of: CO,  $SO_2$ ,  $SO_3$ , NO,  $NO_2$ , ozone, unburned hydrocarbons and dust (concentrations at respiration height<sup>1</sup>] presented, if possible, in the form of iso lines of annual average and one hour average concentrations). Moreover, attention must be paid to the emission and precipitation of As, Cd, Hg, Zn, Cl, F (insofar as these elements are emitted in relevant amounts), radioactive components and polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons. Will people living in the vicinity be exposed to emissions of radioactive substances?

These changes can be considered as primary impacts possibly triggering secondary impacts like:

- · contamination of the soil and the surface water;
- · damage to vegetation (directly and indirectly);
- · damage to objects of cultural heritage;
- photochemical air pollution;
- . stench.

The above-mentioned changes must also be described in connection with those changes caused by the existing power plant and other (new) sources (accumulation).

#### Specific questions.

- What is the difference in composition between the emitted and the eliminated fractions of the fly ash?
- · Which photochemical and other reactions occur in the plume?
- · What is the contribution of the power plant to smog under specific weather conditions?
- · Which nuisance could occur due to the forming of fog as a result of the chimney plume?

# 6.3 Soil and water

- What is the increase in temperature at the point of discharge and what is the average temperature increase in the receiving surface water?
- · What is the impact of the use of cooling water on the oxygen household in the Noordzeekanaal (North Sea Canal)?
- What is the impact of the discharge of the effluent of the F.D.I. installation on the receiving waters? Which amounts of chloride, sulphate and fluoride will be discharged in the surface water?
- A description must be given of the quantities of percolation and leakage water and the places where it can penetrate into the ground.

an altitude of 1.5 m. above ground level.

- · An analysis is desired of the expected load of wet and dry deposition from flue gases and dust-emissions on the surroundings. Malfunctioning and calamities, in particular of the flue gas treatment facilities, must be taken into account .
- To what extent does pollution of surface water occur as a result of ferrosulphate and chlorine additions in the cooling water system? Can possibilities be identified to refrain from the use of these additives (temperature shock)?
- Which amounts of heavy metals will be discharged and which impact on the receiving surface water and subaqueous soil is expected?

#### 6.4 Noise

- · What is the immission relevant sound power level of the entire power plant and its spectral distribution? Quote the accompanying operational status and the average time span per year this status prevails. How are these levels determined?
- · What is the maximum noise level, measured at one meter distance of the relevant sources? Which noise mitigating provisions will be made?
- Present the noise contours outside the boundaries of the plant site under representative operational conditions and per review period.
   Where can the contour for the 50 dB(A) 24 hours average be found?
- What is the level  $L_{Eq}$  per review period at relevant locations outside the boundaries of the plant site and in what manner do the distinguishable subsources contribute to it? What is at these locations the possible contribution of traffic and other (power plant) activities?

# 6.5 Vegetation and fauna

· As far as feasible, the impacts of the emissions of air pollutants by the power plant on sensitive objects in the surroundings -such as flora, vegetations, fauna, ecosystem types in nature conservation areas, agricultural and horticultural crops- must be given, placed in time perspective.

#### 6.6 Landscape

The following data can be meaningful for a review of the impacts on landscape:

#### a. Maps

- · The location of the plant (1:25,000).
- The lot and lay-out pattern of the site (for instance on a 1:2500 map).
- · A sketch of the surroundings or a vertical aerial photo which make clear how the site and the surroundings are arranged now and how the complex will be fitted into the surroundings.

# b. Elevations and profiles

· Cross-sectional profiles of the complex from some directions or photomontages on eye level; possibly a bird's eye view simulation of the entire

complex in its surroundings, to get an impression of the contribution of the highest parts of the installation to the shape of the skyline.

#### c. Remaining data

- The light: which facilities will be installed to prevent the radiation of light, in particular to residential areas?
- New high-voltage lines and 150 KV station, if not included in the pictures of the plant.

# 6.7 Safety

The impacts on the level of safety around the plant should be evaluated using a quantitative risk assessment method. The  $10^{-6}$  and  $10^{-8}$  risk contours should be indicated on a map.

# 7. Comparison of the alternatives

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 1, sub f:

An EIS shall contain at least: "a comparison of the expected developments in the environment, as described under d, with the described effects of the proposed activity on the environment and with the described effects on the environment of each of the alternatives considered".

In the EIS a comparison must be made between the impacts of the proposed activity and alternatives. A comparison with the current state of the environment (including its autonomous development) must also be made. On the basis of these comparisons the choice for the preferred alternative should be motivated.

The comparison must be based on standards and target values of the environmental policy. A sensitivity analysis must be carried out with respect to the review criteria used.

#### 8. Gaps in information

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.10, subsection 1, sub g: An EIS shall contain at least: "a review of the omissions in the description referred to under d and e, due to lack of the necessary information".

The EIS must indicate which of the required information cannot be given and why it cannot be given. The meaning of these gaps in knowledge for the decision- making must be described.

# Post project analysis

Environmental Protection Act, section 7.39:

"The competent authority that has taken a decision, in the preparation of which an environmental impact statement was drawn up, shall investigate the effects of the activity concerned on the environment, either during or after its completion".

The competent authority must draw up an evaluation programme in order to be able to compare the predicted impacts with the actual impacts. In the first place it must be stated whether the actual environmental impacts are more or less severe than the predicted environmental impacts and whether extra measures should be taken.

Secondly, it should be studied whether the gaps in knowledge and information mentioned in the EIS can be supplemented. Finally, it must be studied whether any external developments could be a reason to adjust or review the decision.

# 10. EIS STYLE AND PRESENTATION

The EIS must contain a summary. This has to be written in comprehensible diction so that it can be understood by the general public. It should be an independently legible document and form a good reflection of the contents of the EIS. Special attention must be paid to the presentation (on a map) of the proposed activity and the most important alternatives, as well as to the comparison of the alternatives.

For the remaining presentation the following is recommended:

- to keep the EIS concise;
- to give the maps a well readable topographical basis and to provide it with clear legends and topographical names;
- · to clearly account for the important choices in drafting the EIS;
- to account for possible deviations from the guidelines;
- to record background information (as baseline for conclusions, predictions and choices) not in the EIS itself, but to include it in appendices;
- to include in the EIS an explanatory list of terms, a list of abbreviations used and a literature list.

# ANNEX

Outline of the EIA procedure on a 600 MWe coal-fired power station in Amsterdam

# Outline of the EIA procedure on a 600 MWe coal-fired power station in Amsterdam

#### Introduction

Electricity supply in the Netherlands is organized centrally for reasons of optimization and guarantee of supply. The electricity producers have to operate within the framework of the Ten Year Electricity Plan. This plan which is updated every two years, is elaborated by the Dutch Electricity Generating Board and confirmed by the minister of Economic Affairs. The plan contains decisions on the capacity and siting of new power plants. The Electricity Plan is not subject to EIA but the National Structure Scheme for Electricity Supply must be established with the application of EIA. The Structure Scheme decides on the kind of fuel applied in power stations. Additionally it provides criteria for the definite site selection in the Ten Year Electricity Plans.

In the Ten Year Electricity Plan 1987–1996 the decision was made to extend the power station (Hemweg) in Amsterdam-west with a new coal-fired unit of 600 MWe. The EIA for the licensing of the new unit started in June 1987 with the publication of the notification of intent. The EIS was published in May 1988 and the licenses were granted in June 1989.

#### Advice for specific guidelines and alternatives

The strict policy framework established in the Structure Scheme and in the Ten Year Electricity Plan precludes the elaboration of site and fuel consumption alternatives restricting the EIA at the licensing level of decision-making to the elaboration of implementation alternatives. Hence, the advice for specific guidelines and subsequently, the guidelines only dealt with the design of the plant and mitigation measures reducing emissions.

These concern:

- fuel composition;
- supply, transport and storage of coal;
- design of the power plant;
- the installation for flue gas desulphurisation;
- reduction of NOx-emissions;
- treatment of bottom ash and slag;
- treatment of waste water;
- facilities to prevent calamities;
- the availability and use of cooling water.

#### EIS

In the EIS all main subjects of the specific guidelines were covered.

#### Review advice

In the review advice the Commission for EIA concludes that the mitigating measures as part of the preferred alternative are not on the level of best technical means although this intention had been stated already in the notification of intent at the start of the EIA-procedure. Consequently, the

Commission proposes to carry out extra mitigation measures complying with available best technical means.

#### Decision

The competent authority followed through on the review advice of the Commission and attempted to enforce the proposed extra environmental mitigation measures. These extra measures however will lower emissions from levels which comply already with current emission standards. Further reduction of emissions is only possible if the proponent agrees to such measures voluntarily. This is confirmed in court in an appeal against the initial decision. In a letter dated February 1989 the proponent agrees to seriously attempt to further reduce sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides emissions with one third below the standards.

#### Special features

This case confirms that EIA at the licensing level must be restricted to implementation alternatives dealing with design and mitigation measures only. It also shows that the proponent can obtain the required licenses if he can demonstrate in the EIS to be able to contain emissions within current standards. In addition this EIA shows however, that the application of EIA can exert pressure on a further lowering of permissible emissions from power plants.